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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to this hearing of the Public Safety

          4  Committee.  We will be having a two-part hearing

          5  today.  The first part of the hearing will be on

          6  Intro 482, which will make it a misdemeanor, an "A"

          7  misdemeanor to trespass on the playing area of a

          8  professional sporting event, and impose a civil

          9  penalty for those who do so.

         10                 This bill is sponsored by Speaker

         11  Miller and myself and was motivated by an increase

         12  in the number of violent incidents in which fans run

         13  out on the field and assault or attempt to assault

         14  players, umpires, or other participants.  Under the

         15  current law this crime is only a "B" misdemeanor

         16  which carries 90 days in jail and at most a $500

         17  fine. With the potentially serious harm this

         18  activity may cause, our bill creates "A" misdemeanor

         19  with the potential of one year in jail or $1,000

         20  fine.  In addition we are adding civil penalties of

         21  up to $25,000 for engaging in this activity.  We are

         22  also introducing two resolutions today, one calls on

         23  the State to mirror what we are doing and make

         24  trespass on a baseball field an "A" misdemeanor.  We

         25  are also calling on the State to make the assault or
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          2  attempted assault of a participant a felony.  We

          3  don't have the power to do that here on a City level

          4  with the Administrative Code, we are asking the

          5  State to do it.  Times have changed and people are

          6  not going on the fields anymore to streak, they are

          7  going on to attempt to harm people.  We want to send

          8  a clear message here today that if you want to make

          9  a fool out of yourself here in New York City you

         10  will pay for it, with up to a year in jail and up to

         11  a $25,000 fine.  We are going to hear testimony

         12  today from a few people and we are happy to have

         13  with us Major League Baseball and U.S. Tennis

         14  Censor.  And we will call their representatives up

         15  to the stand, we have Dan Mullin, with Major League

         16  Baseball, and George Gowan, with the United States

         17  Tennis Association.  Thank you.  Mr. Mullin, why

         18  don't you begin.  I heard that you brought Roger

         19  Clemens down with you today to bolster your

         20  argument.  If you press the button and the mic goes

         21  on, you can begin your statement at any time.

         22                 MR. MULLIN:  Thanks.  Good morning.

         23  I want to thank the Chairman and members of the

         24  Council for having me here today. My name is Dan

         25  Mullin, I'm the Senior Director for Security and
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          2  Facility Management of Major League Baseball.  Prior

          3  to joining baseball I spent 23 years with the NYPD,

          4  I commanded the 114th and 103rd Precincts and

          5  retired as a Deputy Chief in the Bronx.  I appear

          6  today on behalf of the Commissioner of Baseball.  We

          7  welcome the opportunity to support your efforts to

          8  pass this legislation. Across the nation, it's the

          9  rash of these field jumpers, and as you stated they

         10  are getting more and more dangerous.  In the post

         11  911 era, securities have changed dramatically.  We

         12  screen our customers and their bags at all of our

         13  parks, we use bomb sniffing dogs and metal detectors

         14  intermittently and we do table top disaster

         15  exercises all around the country.  Our teams have

         16  increased their security presence on the field.  In

         17  spite of all the talk of terrorism, though, as we

         18  travel from field to field and team to team the

         19  players are most concerned about their safety on the

         20  field and they ask us what we are doing to make them

         21  safer on the field. We are trying to do that.  In

         22  all the parks we have added police officers that are

         23  actually stationed in and around the field.  In a

         24  sign of the times, the two ball girls at Cellular

         25  Field in Chicago, who had been there for years, were
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          2  taken off the field and replaced by police officers.

          3    But we need help, we can't do it alone.

          4                 I work closely with the NBA, the NFL,

          5  and the NHL, as well as Major League Soccer.  It's

          6  not a problem unique to baseball. In every sports

          7  venue across the country, in fact, across the world,

          8  it's a major concern what's being done to protect

          9  the participants, the coaches, and the officials.

         10                 Several incidents, I think

         11  dramatically point out the problem.  The first, of

         12  course, was Tom Gamboa last year in Chicago, first

         13  base coach for the Royals, unprovoked attack

         14  coaching first base and two lunatics jumped out of

         15  the stands and assaulted him.  I will show you some

         16  tape in a minute.  And then recently this year, Laz

         17  Diaz, an umpire also in Chicago, was attacked as the

         18  ump at first base.  As you correctly pointed out

         19  it's no longer streakers running around the field,

         20  there are people that are jumping around and looking

         21  to do harm.  To date there have been 18 of these

         22  field incidents throughout the major leagues.  Two

         23  have been at Yankee Stadium. And again, as you

         24  correctly point out, the sanctions are not strong

         25  enough.  They were charged with a "B" misdemeanor,
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          2  they paid a small fine and they were released.  It's

          3  simply not a big enough sanction to make any

          4  deterrent.  In fact, there is an incident in

          5  Philadelphia about two weeks ago at Veteran's

          6  Stadium where a fan jumped on the field, made a fool

          7  of himself, and after he told the press, "Yeah, I

          8  know what the fine was, it was 250, and for me it

          9  was worth it to pay the fine to step on the field."

         10  So it dramatically illustrates that the deterrent

         11  just isn't good enough. The State has a bill as you

         12  are aware they are looking to pass the criminal

         13  trespass on the field of play, unfortunately that

         14  will be a "B" misdemeanor and as the City police

         15  already charge a "B" misdemeanor at Yankee and Shea

         16  the State bill doesn't really do anything

         17  substantive, which is why the City Council bill is

         18  so important.  And I also applaud your efforts to

         19  get an assault on the field dumped to a felony at

         20  the State level.  We thank you for your efforts.  If

         21  we could show the two video tapes.

         22                 This is actually all in the same day

         23  in Chicago. There were four separate field jumpers

         24  during the same game.  And they got progressively

         25  worse, the last being the assault on the umpire.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I guess I was

          3  wrong about the streaking part, huh?

          4                 MR. MULLIN:  Yeah.  And this is the

          5  assault on the umpire during the same game.  And

          6  after the game, he told the police that the reason

          7  he assaulted the umpire was that he wanted to do

          8  something more dramatic than the other three had

          9  done who ran on the field.  So his idea was that if

         10  I attack an umpire, that's something more than they

         11  did.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I hadn't

         13  realized that one of those previous people said they

         14  were aware of the fact that there was a $250 fine

         15  and it was worth it to them.

         16                 MR. MULLIN:  That was in Philadephia

         17  about three weeks ago.  He said he was well aware of

         18  the fine, he said friends that had done it and for

         19  him it was worth the fine to jump on the field and

         20  act like a jerk.  And the last tape is the incident

         21  of last year with Tom Gamboa, the Royals first base

         22  coach.  This was actually an uncle and his nephew

         23  and the uncle called his sister, the young man's

         24  mother, and told her to put the TV on, you're going

         25  to see something good in a few minutes.  So this was

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  premeditated, they planned it, called the sister and

          3  told her to watch it and then jumped on the field

          4  and assaulted the first base coach.  He also had a

          5  knife in his pocket which fell out during the malay

          6  so as you correctly point out they are getting more

          7  and more dangerous.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We have

          9  statements submitted by the Yankees and the Mets,

         10  both fully in support of this, and by the New York

         11  City Police Departments.  But unfortunately, I guess

         12  because of the subway series they couldn't be here

         13  today, so I'm hoping you know the answers to some of

         14  these questions.  When it comes to security at these

         15  stadiums, how much is done my Major League Baseball

         16  and how much is done by the cities which are

         17  involved?  And especially in this case, New York

         18  City?

         19                 MR. MULLIN:  A lot.  In Yankee

         20  Stadium for example, there are between 45 and 50

         21  police officers that the Yankees pay for.  They are

         22  New York City police officers that the Yankees

         23  employ off duty to work inside the stadium.  During

         24  game time up to a dozen of them are posted around

         25  the field, in the photographer's well, in the
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          2  dugout, in the bullpen area, the field is virtually

          3  encircled with police officers.  But short of

          4  putting up mesh, it's impossible no matter how many

          5  police officers you put there to fully prevent it.

          6  As you see in Chicago, they have thirteen police

          7  officers.  The security officers that chased those

          8  field intruders are all Chicago police officers and

          9  there are thirteen of them that surround the field

         10  during a game.  And you can see the response, but

         11  again, it virtually impossible to prevent someone in

         12  an incident to jump over and onto the field.  So

         13  that's why the sanction has to be increased and this

         14  legislation is so important.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So in Yankee

         16  Stadium, for example, there would be 40 officers you

         17  said?

         18                 MR. MULLIN:  There are 45 that are

         19  assigned, paid for by the Yankees, inside of the

         20  stadium.  That supplements their own security and up

         21  to a dozen of those virtually encircle the field,

         22  from the bullpen on both sides, photographer's

         23  wells.  There are police officers assigned inside

         24  the dugouts and behind home plate.  So Major League

         25  Baseball and the teams individually are doing as
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          2  much as they possibly can to try to stop this.  It's

          3  not enough.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I am aware on

          5  occasion there is even higher security because I've

          6  been at games where they've had mounted police

          7  there.  How does that work?

          8                 MR. MULLIN:  Well, I also have

          9  experienced on the other side.  I was Chief of the

         10  Bronx, so I, on the police side I did a lot of work

         11  policing Yankee Stadium and for a special event,

         12  opening day, or a subway series, there can be as

         13  many as 300 police officers assigned in and around

         14  the stadium.  Mounted officers, bomb sniffing dogs,

         15  harbor patrol in the water that leads up to Yankee

         16  Stadium, helicopter dedicated to Yankee Stadium for

         17  the event, so the police and the baseball teams

         18  devote a tremendous amount of resources to making

         19  these games safe.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And when you

         21  have that type, those type of resources allocated,

         22  the cost would be about how much and who is

         23  responsible for that cost?

         24                 MR. MULLIN:  Well, for the inside of

         25  the stadium the 45 off duty police officers that
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          2  work inside the stadium, the Yankees pay for those.

          3  Anything outside of the stadium, on the stadium

          4  grounds, traffic, or as I said, harbor and aviation

          5  resources, the City pays that bill.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And you think

          7  that what we're doing here today might result in

          8  some savings for both Major League Baseball and

          9  City?

         10                 MR. MULLIN:  Absolutely.  Every time

         11  one of these incidents occurs, as I said before, the

         12  players are very concerned. So when one of these

         13  things happens the Club and the City are obligated

         14  to devote more resources to allay their fears.  So

         15  absolutely if these things stop there would be a

         16  significant savings for both the Clubs and the City.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Before I get to

         18  Council Member Katz's questions, let me ask the

         19  representative from the U.S. Tennis Association to

         20  provide some testimony also.  Thank you.

         21                 MR. GOWEN:  Right, thank you.  My

         22  name is George W. Gowen, General Counsel of the U.S.

         23  Tennis Association, which is known as the USTA.

         24  Each year the USTA holds the United States Open

         25  Tennis Championships in a $300,000,000 complex.  It
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          2  has built at it's own expense in cooperation with

          3  the City in Flushing Meadow Park, Queens.  The U.S.

          4  Tennis Open has grown to be the highest attended,

          5  and the richest annual sporting event in the world,

          6  generating at least $400,000,000 economic impact of

          7  the City of New York.  The U.S. Open is televised to

          8  over 140 countries.  It has become a world- wide

          9  symbol of New York City.  And part of the symbol

         10  might be the unisphere, which is in the Park, and

         11  was built for the World's Fair.  And all of the

         12  international television always photographs that

         13  incredible unisphere and literally New York City

         14  becomes the center of the world for two weeks around

         15  Labor Day.  New York has the greatest sport's fans

         16  in the world.  The best athletes dream of competing

         17  in New York.  The public, the players, and officials

         18  expect that sporting events held in New York City

         19  will not be marred by incidents that regrettably

         20  happen in certain arenas be occurring with greater

         21  frequency.  Attacks on officials, players, members

         22  of the public have no place in a sporting event.

         23  The integrity of the competition, the safety of the

         24  officials, and the enjoyment of the fans are

         25  dependent upon restraining the conduct of those few
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          2  individuals who might chose to physically assault

          3  others.  The USTA supports the proposed amendments,

          4  increasing penalties for such conduct, and commends

          5  the City Council for their leadership in proposing

          6  these amendments which seek to maintain the City's

          7  pre- eminence as a sporting capitol of the world.  I

          8  might add a comment that some of the previous

          9  testimony very appropriately referred to the costs

         10  involved in security.  I would just like to add that

         11  what is involved is not only the physical protection

         12  of individuals, whether they be official or players,

         13  it is also the integrity of the competition.  The

         14  world class athletes are under a great pressure to

         15  perform to the best of their ability.  If they are

         16  distracting events which destroy the kind of the

         17  harmony and the symphony of the sporting event, the

         18  event itself is degraded.  And this might be more

         19  true perhaps in tennis where it's almost like a

         20  boxing match, it's one on one.  And any incident

         21  that would detract from the activity of the physical

         22  endeavor by each of the players in a sense deprives

         23  the public of what they're paying to see.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I think you are

         25  absolutely right about the degradation of the sport.
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          2                 As Mr. Mullin mentioned you don't

          3  want to put mesh around the entire stadium and

          4  punish the entire all the fans.  You don't want to

          5  get like Europe where they've actually almost built

          6  steel cages around some of their soccer events.  And

          7  we think that this bill will go a long way to

          8  prevent those accidents from happening.  Council

          9  Member Katz.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I actually have

         11  a few questions for Mr. Mullin, but before I ask

         12  that, how much does the USTA for the U.S. Open in

         13  Flushing Meadow Park spend on security versus how

         14  many public police officers?

         15                 MR. GOWEN:  I honestly don't know

         16  that figure, and very frankly we generally don't

         17  publicize the level of security for obvious reasons.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I wasn't asking

         19  the level of security, I was simply asking the cost.

         20                 MR. GOWEN:  I think, I have to add

         21  that the New York Police Department does a wonderful

         22  job in cooperating at all public events, and often

         23  during the U.S. Open there may be a Mets game in

         24  Shea Stadium.  And it's an incredibly challenging

         25  activity just to control the traffic.  And needless
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          2  to say if you have a breakdown in traffic control

          3  you have an invitation to security violations and

          4  possible attacks.  And the police department is the

          5  prime source of protection at the U.S. Open.  I

          6  would add that as far as tennis, the worse incidents

          7  have been assaults on players.  There was one in

          8  Germany where Monica Seles was stabbed by somebody

          9  who was infatuated with Steffi Graff and didn't want

         10  Monica Seles to beat Steffi Graff so he went out and

         11  stabbed Monica Seles in the back and to all

         12  practical purposes because of possible the German

         13  interpretation of his psychiatric condition, there

         14  was really no punishment on that and it, to all

         15  practical purposes, ended Monica Seles' career

         16  although she did try to come back.  So the

         17  protection in tennis has been geared towards

         18  protecting the athlete.  When an athlete sits down

         19  between matches, between change overs, we have

         20  protection facing towards the crowd and around

         21  because that is the greatest risk, physical risk.

         22  And officials have not been attacked, although

         23  several years ago, I think it was about 25 years ago

         24  we had a very colorful player, Ilie Nastasi, and I

         25  think he may have been playing a night match.  At
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          2  night matches, people get much more excited and the

          3  crowd got totally out of control.  And to all

          4  practical purposes the match had to be stopped.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.  I was

          6  just really talking about costs.  Thank you, though,

          7  I really appreciate the background on it.  I think

          8  it's interesting to note that the USTA has some very

          9  different problems than Major League Baseball as far

         10  as it really is the players you are trying to

         11  protect and rightfully so and I guess there is less

         12  of that sort of I don't if there's less of a rowdy

         13  crowd or not.  I have no idea, but it seems that

         14  it's usually the players that's the issue there as

         15  well.  Mr. Mullin, you've talked about Yankee

         16  Stadium and about 45 to 50 private hirings of police

         17  officers to help protect them, do you know what Shea

         18  Stadium is?

         19                 MR. MULLIN:  It's about the same.

         20  Again that supplements private security.  At Yankee

         21  Stadium they have dozens of Burns security guards

         22  and the New York City police that they hire off duty

         23  supplement that, so the security presence at both

         24  Yankee and Shea is significant both inside and out.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Do you know, I
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          2  know that you also have a legal background, do you

          3  know how many convictions at all come out of Major

          4  League Baseball a year, from all this, percentage

          5  wise to the amount of arrests to the amount of folks

          6  you take off the field?

          7                 MR. MULLIN:  They are virtually all

          8  convictions, guilty pleas for the most part.  But

          9  they are "B" misdemeanors, so the standard outcome

         10  is a $250 fine and the time served so no large

         11  deterrent.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  It's

         13  interesting because this is the case unlike many

         14  other crimes you are actually getting convictions

         15  here, it's just that the convictions are worth the

         16  while of actually the people that convict the

         17  crimes.

         18                 MR. MULLIN:  Exactly.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Have you, and

         20  you probably have not done it cause I'm not even

         21  sure if you have a copy, have you read in detail the

         22  bill?

         23                 MR. MULLIN:  I have.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  You have.  Is

         25  it because of your background I'm asking, do you
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          2  have any suggestions on it, do you think it's a good

          3  piece of legislation, would you change anything in

          4  it?

          5                 MR. MULLIN:  I think it's a great

          6  piece of legislation.  It goes a long way to make it

          7  a bigger deterrent.  I spoke to Mr. Becker earlier

          8  and I agree, he mentioned that there might be a

          9  change as far as language that deals with while the

         10  game is progress.  That's a concern because

         11  sometimes it happens between innings or when there

         12  is a break in play, so there might interpretation as

         13  to what that means "game in progress".  So I would

         14  agree with that language to be tightened up.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Last question,

         16  Chair Vallone mentioned to me that while people are

         17  streaking across the field, or beating up umpires,

         18  or whatever they are doing on the field, the cameras

         19  are not normally on them.  Do they normally pan to

         20  the crowd?

         21                 MR. MULLIN:  What they do is the

         22  cooperative TV networks don't put that on TV.  A lot

         23  of the footage you see we get from FOX, ESPN, or

         24  from internal cameras for our review, but hopefully

         25  those things won't appear during a live broadcast of
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          2  the game because the networks have agreed not to

          3  encourage this kind of behavior.  An assault, like

          4  happened on the umpire or that happened on the first

          5  base coach, that's so news worthy that they  have to

          6  show that.  But the other morons that just streak

          7  across the field and wave their shirts the networks

          8  won't show that on TV.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you and

         12  we will be making that change regarding "while the

         13  events in progress" and Ted Baecher is sitting to my

         14  left.  He is the one responsible for drafting this

         15  legislation, has worked very hard on this and I

         16  would like to thank him and Michelle Callifer

         17  (phonetic) for their work. So that you know we do

         18  have statements in support of this bill by the

         19  Yankees and the Mets.  I'll just sum them up briefly

         20  because they do recommend changes themselves.  The

         21  Mets say that they go into the different problems

         22  they've been having with these types of incidents

         23  and they say had two this season and in the past

         24  there have been incidents of field intrusion which

         25  constantly reminds us we are as vulnerable as any
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          2  other venue.  Some of their changes include:

          3  Changing the definition of the playing area.  They'd

          4  like the bullpen, which makes sense, to be protected

          5  and I believe there goes first the locker room.  And

          6  those are changes we will be looking into.  And they

          7  say that this proposed amendment displays the

          8  Council's commitment to maintain order at and

          9  protect those who attend sporting events in New York

         10  City and the Mets support this proposed amendment

         11  and appreciate the Council's attention to this

         12  important issue.  Of course, I had to read that

         13  part, how well we are doing.  And the Yankees, they

         14  also state that they concur with our findings here

         15  at the Council regarding the increase in incidents

         16  involving unruly fans, and despite increased

         17  security that this has been happening.  They request

         18  that we consider increasing the class of people who

         19  can avail themselves of the civil penalty.  They

         20  would like to include security personnel, and

         21  groundskeepers and other stadium operations

         22  personnel; who I believe are also going to possibly

         23  include in this legislation at the end of the day

         24  before this Council makes a vote on this.  So there

         25  are some other changes we will be making
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          2                 MR. MULLIN:  That's great.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Let me just

          4  take a chance to recognize that we have with us

          5  Public School No. 20, the District Council Member

          6  Alan Gerson.  Welcome kids, what we are having here

          7  is a hearing of the City Council.  The City Council

          8  is the body, hello, how are you?  We are charged

          9  with the oversight over different agencies.  We have

         10  the the police department here today and they will

         11  be telling us some things in a few minutes. But

         12  right now we have Major League Baseball with us and

         13  the United States Tennis Association with us.  And

         14  we are talking about the problem of people running

         15  on the fields when they shouldn't do that.  So,

         16  first of all, never do that because it's not a good

         17  thing to do and if you do it make sure you have

         18  $25,000 with you. Okay, cause we need some help with

         19  the City budget.  But thanks for coming down.  Is

         20  there anything else any other changes you two would

         21  recommend?

         22                 MR. MULLIN:  No, that's great.

         23  Again, I want to express my appreciation for the

         24  Council for doing this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, thank you
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          2  both for coming down today.  We look forward to

          3  working with you in improving this bill before we

          4  vote on it and we thank you for your time.  Next we

          5  will have a representative from the Queens District

          6  Attorney's Office.  Okay, I think we are ready to

          7  go.  So, I think first in the interest of full

          8  disclosure, I need to say that the representative of

          9  this Queens DA's Office is named Kristen Vallone,

         10  which is also my name.  It happens to be my ex-

         11  wife, which shows how small a world this is, who

         12  will explain right now why she's the one down here

         13  to testify.  So, welcome, and please identify

         14  yourself for the record and I've been waiting for

         15  this for a long time actually.  Can we swear this

         16  witness in?

         17                 MS. VALLONE:  Good morning, Chairman

         18  Vallone and members of the Safety Committee.  My

         19  name is Kristen Vallone.  I am an Assistant District

         20  Attorney for the County of Queens.  I am currently

         21  assigned as liaison to the United States Tennis

         22  Center and for Shea Stadium in Flushing.  And I

         23  thank you to have the opportunity to be heard on

         24  this important issue.  The Queens County District

         25  Attorney's Office supports the new legislation
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          2  proposed by my ex- husband, I mean the City Council.

          3                 Queens County, as I mentioned, is

          4  home to two major sports arenas, Shea Stadium and

          5  the United States Tennis Center.  They are national

          6  and international sporting venues that draw players

          7  and fans from around the country and the world and,

          8  as well, our own New Yorkers.  We have a duty to

          9  ensure that sporting events held here in Queens and

         10  in arenas throughout the City are not only enjoyable

         11  but safe for players, staff members, and spectators

         12  alike.  Unfortunately we have recently seen several

         13  disturbing incidents, criminal incidents throughout

         14  the country.  More than ever we need to take some

         15  preempted measures and send the message that crime

         16  will not be tolerated and if committed will be

         17  aggressively prosecuted.  To elevate the existing

         18  prosecution from a "B" misdemeanor to an "A"

         19  misdemeanor is entirely appropriate, because we are

         20  dealing with incidents occurring within a large

         21  public venue where often times thousands of people

         22  are present.  There is a potential for additional

         23  problems and further criminality resulting from the

         24  onset of a single person trespassing on the field.

         25  This new law would be helpful in maintaining a safe,
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          2  secure environment within the sports arena.  The

          3  civil penalty exposure should further help to deter

          4  and dissuade the criminality.  We support the law

          5  and would welcome discussions on drafting issues

          6  regarding definitions of terms or language used, and

          7  the situations and incidents which we would like to

          8  have anticipated and covered under this law.

          9  According to our information, no other state has

         10  existing legislation of this kind.  New York City

         11  may once again be the leading legislative body in

         12  drafting model legislation.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, thank

         14  you, I hadn't even realized about this not existing

         15  anywhere else.  Because we are on the topic of

         16  changes to this law, I know you had discussions with

         17  my Counsel Ted Baecher just today with a possible

         18  change regarding weapons.  Could you please explain

         19  your thoughts on that matter?

         20                 MS. VALLONE:  Our concern is that we

         21  also cover situations where an individual may enter

         22  either the stadium or specifically onto the playing

         23  field and not only trespass, not only attempt to

         24  assault or strike an individual, but they also have

         25  in his/her possession a weapon either per se weapon
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          2  or dangerous instrument.  We would like to see an

          3  instance like that covered as well under the

          4  statute.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

          6  we've been joined by Council Member Phil Reed.

          7  Thank you Phil.  And I have had discussions by

          8  Counsel also and we will be at your request adding

          9  that section in to not only include trespass, but to

         10  bump the level of fine up if you attempt to assault

         11  an individual or if you are carrying a weapon or a

         12  dangerous instrument.  We are going to ask the State

         13  Legislature to make that a felony.  So thank you for

         14  that suggestion.  Speaking of the State, you've been

         15  dealing with Albany on this question also.  Can you

         16  please inform us as to those discussions and to what

         17  your opinion is as to what Albany is doing?

         18                 MS. VALLONE:  My information as of

         19  last night is that although the State has proposed

         20  legislation what they are in effect doing will not

         21  raise the level of the prosecution.  While they

         22  would like to see a specific statute with relation

         23  to trespassing on a playing field of a professional

         24  playing field I should say it remains a "B"

         25  misdemeanor.  So from a prosecutor's standpoint, it
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          2  doesn't necessarily offer us anything additional.

          3  The reason why we fully support the City Council

          4  bill is because of two- fold reasons.  One being

          5  that it does raise the level from the "B"

          6  misdemeanor to the "A", but it also imposes

          7  additional civil penalties.  And I concur with Major

          8  League and the other officials that have made

          9  comments with regard to the legislation, but I think

         10  it would be a strong deterrent.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now if an event

         12  does occur at either US Tennis Center or Shea

         13  Stadium in this instance and there is a prosecution,

         14  you would be the person in charge of that

         15  prosecution?  Correct?

         16                 MS. VALLONE:  I am the liaison, yes,

         17  to the Tennis Association over at Flushing and also

         18  Shea.  I have had, actually we had an instance that

         19  was widely publicized just last year at the US Open

         20  regarding the prosecution of the stalker of Serena

         21  Williams.  Yes, I did handle that case and you know

         22  it just brings to light the fact that there are

         23  serious, legitimate concerns regarding the violent

         24  nature of some of the fans.  This year at Shea

         25  Stadium we had a prosecution of a stalker for Steve
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          2  Philips, formally of the Mets, and this individual

          3  also had harassed a number of security personnel.

          4  In that prosecution the defendant was found unfit.

          5  There's something called a 730 Exam pursuant to the

          6  Criminal Procedure Law and that defendant was found

          7  unfit due to psychiatric limitations and has been

          8  subsequently committed to a psychiatric facility.

          9  So with regard to violence or criminality that may

         10  occur within the stadiums it is definitely an issue

         11  and of concern.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So you have

         13  then personally prosecuted people who have been

         14  found to be mentally unfit for attempting to get

         15  closer to professional ball players?

         16                 MS. VALLONE:  Absolutely, and not

         17  only prosecutions but there have been concerns

         18  brought to our office's attention with regards to

         19  other matters which pose a threat to either players

         20  or other staff members.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We have a

         22  question from Council Member Katz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Just a quick

         24  question, Mr. Mullin was talking about plea

         25  bargaining or you know either pleading guilty.  Did
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          2  it plea guilty to the lesser crime or do you get,

          3  first of all, what are the percentages of actual

          4  plead guilty? Second, when they plead guilty, do

          5  they plead guilty to a lesser crime, it hardly seems

          6  to be a lesser crime on this.

          7                 MS. VALLONE:  Well, the prosecuted

          8  cases such as strictly running on the field, that is

          9  no other incidence of criminality, I'm talking

         10  strictly trespass with nobody trying to attempt to

         11  assault anyone or harass anybody, I was able to run

         12  the statistics back to January, 2000, from January,

         13  2000, to June, 2003, we had ten prosecuted incidents

         14  of strictly trespassing at Shea Stadium.  Of those

         15  ten, because of whatever mitigating circumstances

         16  surrounding each individual's action and the

         17  individual himself, i.e., whether or not he had a

         18  criminal record or lack thereof, eight of those ten

         19  dispositions resulted in what we call adjournments

         20  in contemplation of dismissal where they are

         21  required to stay out of trouble for six months

         22  basically and we would agree to dismiss the case.

         23  And the other two resulted in either a conditional

         24  discharge, which requires a one year abstentional

         25  from criminality, or a time- served, where they
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          2  actually had to go through the system and serve some

          3  jail time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, well

          5  thank you for coming down today.  There are no more

          6  questions from the Council Members and appreciate

          7  you coming down, thank you.  You're done.

          8                 MS. VALLONE:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I'd like to add

         10  that stated the Bronx District Attorney's Office,

         11  Robert Johnson, did also send a statement supporting

         12  the Council's action and talking about the amount of

         13  prosecutions they have had at Yankee Stadium and

         14  mentioning in 1996 someone ran on the field with a

         15  bear torso decorated with an off color painted

         16  slogan concerning the Mayor. I think we remember

         17  that one was convicted if criminal trespass in the

         18  third degree which was a "B" misdemeanor and they

         19  mentioned that this disruptive behavior is now

         20  fairly common.  This legislation would simplify a

         21  prosecution and provide an elevated penalty and they

         22  support it.  We have no one, we have made offers but

         23  no one has taken us up, to testify against this

         24  proposition. We will be making changes based on the

         25  testimony we have heard today and voting it out most
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          2  likely at our next full Council meeting.  I would

          3  like to recognize Alan Jennings.  Can we go through

          4  all our testimony again, please for Alan?  No?  And,

          5  we are now going to move on to the second part of

          6  our hearing which deals with gang recruitment.

          7                 The second portion of our hearing

          8  deals with proposed Intro 364- A which creates the

          9  new crime of gang recruitment.  We had a hearing in

         10  January, and I know that most of you were with us

         11  then, and we heard from the NYPD about the gang

         12  problem in New York City and the Department anti-

         13  gang initiatives. As a response, we introduced this

         14  bill which would make it a misdemeanor to solicit,

         15  recruit, entice or intimidate a person to join a

         16  street gang.  I would also do the same to intimidate

         17  someone to not, who is tempted to leave a street

         18  gang, to not be able to do that.  Again, as with the

         19  last bill, New York City is leading the way, as we

         20  believe it's the first bill of this type at any

         21  major city in the United States.  We will hear today

         22  from the Police Department, and also from the New

         23  York Civil Liberties Union, and Legal Aid Society.

         24  First we are joined by the Police Department. Thank

         25  you, please identify yourself and you can begin.
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          2                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  Inspector William

          3  Tartaglia, I'm the Commanding Officer of the NYPD's

          4  Gang Division.  Good morning, Mr. Chairman and

          5  members of the Council.  I am Inspector William

          6  Tartaglia.  I'm the Commanding Officer of the New

          7  York City Police Department's Gang Division, and on

          8  behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly I am

          9  pleased to be here to discuss Intro No. 364- A,

         10  prohibiting gang recruitment.

         11                 I would like to express our gratitude

         12  for the attention you have given to the problem of

         13  gang recruitment, and to express our support for the

         14  bill before you.

         15                 It is an unfortunate reality that

         16  innocent young people are sometimes terrorized or

         17  intimidated into joining a gang, in order to protect

         18  themselves from harassment or worse.  They may face

         19  similar problems when they attempt to leave a gang.

         20  This bill provides a tool for law enforcement to use

         21  as we attempt to prevent gang members from

         22  strengthening their ranks through both terror and

         23  enticement.

         24                 The crime set forth in the bill

         25  establishes a high burden on law enforcement in

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  order to make an arrest and prosecute. There must be

          3  probable cause to believe that the person recruiting

          4  the victim is a member of a criminal street gang,

          5  which is engaged or has engaged in criminal gang

          6  activity as defined by the statue. We are open to

          7  discussing the particular language of the bill with

          8  you as you receive comments from other parties

          9  including the Criminal Justice Coordinator and the

         10  District Attorneys, and we look forward to working

         11  with you to incorporate their ideas and concerns.

         12                 As we discussed with I appeared

         13  before you earlier this year, the Gang Division is

         14  working very hard to combat street gangs, gather

         15  intelligence information on gang organizations, and

         16  work in partnership with the community to reduce and

         17  prevent gang crime.  Again, we greatly appreciate

         18  your attention to this issue and in providing us

         19  with a strong tool specifically targeted to the

         20  problem of gang recruitment.

         21                 I will be pleased to answer any

         22  questions you may have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Could you describe in more detail how this,

         25  our proposal, would assist you in your anti- gang
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          2  efforts?

          3                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  I can provide an

          4  example where it would specifically work.  For

          5  instance, if a school child may be encountering some

          6  sort of intimidation for joining a gang, this bill

          7  would give us the ability to investigate that crime

          8  further. It would give us ability to identify those

          9  that are harassing him and intimidating him into

         10  joining the gang, give us the ability to prove that

         11  they are a criminal gang and do all that is required

         12  by the statute and then it would give us the ability

         13  to arrest those individuals and to prevent that from

         14  happening.  That's a perfect example of a school

         15  intimidation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Can you explain

         17  on the existing coercion law does not allow you to

         18  do everything you just mentioned.

         19                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  The existing coercion

         20  law doesn't really include the, as far as I know the

         21  existing coercion law, wouldn't include the specific

         22  gang title.  This bill is more specifically directed

         23  toward the criminal gang, it identifies, it gives

         24  all kinds of things relating to criminal gangs.  I

         25  think this adds to crime.  It's a misdemeanor now
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          2  for this bill if we prove all the burdens that are

          3  required by the statute and it gives us the ability

          4  again to arrest, identify gang members in specific.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Do you have any

          6  examples of how gang members do coerce or intimidate

          7  other children to join gangs?

          8                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  Well, I think the

          9  classic example that we probably we either hear

         10  about or we may witness ourselves in the past is two

         11  or three people in a hallway of some sort or on the

         12  way home from school, on the way to school, or even

         13  after school maybe stop you from going somewhere and

         14  then engage in some sort of conversation or

         15  intimidating act where to proceed or to do something

         16  that you want to do, you are prevented from doing so

         17  unless you join their crew, or their gang, or their

         18  group.  Unless you do so then you have that fear for

         19  every time you go to try to do that.  I think that's

         20  a classic example of what we see.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Go under this

         22  bill, it's our intent, and I'm asking you if you

         23  agree with this, that you would be able to make the

         24  arrests based on the fact that these gang members

         25  have approached this individual and made the threat
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          2  without actually carrying any threats out.

          3                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  Absolutely.  I'm so

          4  for it because it prevents the act from actually

          5  happening.  That's what we want to do.  We don't

          6  want the act to happen, and then arrest them.  We

          7  want to prevent it from happening.  If they feel

          8  intimidated or there's one threat on one day and

          9  then if you come back tomorrow we're going to do

         10  this, we can get them before that coming back

         11  tomorrow we're going to hurt you, or terrorize you.

         12  We can get them before they do any of that.  Exactly

         13  right, that's why it's even better.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I agree

         15  completely, myself, and the other sponsors of this

         16  bill feel that it's better to stop this gang action

         17  before it starts and to stop kids from getting into

         18  this situation as early a possible.  Do you have any

         19  statistics with you today regarding how many

         20  children might be in gangs, and how much crime is

         21  gang related?

         22                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  I can update you on

         23  the statistics. The crime, we are in a little bit of

         24  downward trend, but we were the last time we spoke.

         25  With this specific crime is concerned I think even
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          2  one crime whether we are going down in activity or

          3  how much we are down, and it is downward trend as

          4  far as gangs are. But even one of these crimes, one

          5  of these intimidations, one of these members going

          6  down is one thing, but doing away with the problem

          7  is how this bill can help us.  I mean, you know,

          8  annihilating the problem, stopping the gang

          9  recruitment, and stopping people from becoming part

         10  of gangs is how you have to stop it totally.  And I

         11  think that is what this bill addresses.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  One moment

         13  please.  Council member was inquiring as to what is,

         14  what a gang is defined as. He's got some

         15  untraditional.....  It's actually in the legislation

         16  that was handed to you there.  And if I were you I

         17  wouldn't go any further with that question despite

         18  the fact there's no press in the room.  Are there

         19  any questions on the bill?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Council

         21  Comrie is still trying to read the bill, but I'm

         22  listening intently at the same time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I'll keep

         24  stalling here, I can do a little dance.  Give us one

         25  second, thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Perhaps I

          3  do, Mr. Chair, I'm just, I'm just trying to read

          4  this and I apologize for having been late.  I was at

          5  a seniors housing groundbreaking today.  And the

          6  seniors move slower than we do, so you need to give

          7  them time to get up on the stage and get

          8  comfortable.  It's, I understand the intent of this,

          9  I'm trying, my first reaction to it is, it's going

         10  to be hard to prove that this is really one person's

         11  word against another.  That I feel threatened and

         12  intimated, so I can go out and say I don't like this

         13  person and they've intimated me and start a whole

         14  process.  I'm concerned, and obviously this is a

         15  problem in the schools.  One of the things I did

         16  this morning was we were with the community board at

         17  this function and I was talking with them about

         18  where we are seeing this in East Harlem and the rest

         19  of the community, and we happen to have Mexican

         20  gangs now.  It's the newest version of it.  There

         21  are not per se in the schools, they are just

         22  organizing young people that have recently come over

         23  here. But, am I right to be concerned that this also

         24  could be abused by people if they don't like three

         25  or four people and they can say they've intimated
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          2  me.  I mean how do we weed out one from the other in

          3  terms of accusations.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,

          5  Councilman, I'm sorry let me identify myself.  Susan

          6  Petito, Assistant Commissioner of the Police

          7  Department.  One of the things we always have to do

          8  in any criminal complaint is assess the credibility

          9  of the complainant.  And so for example if the child

         10  may contemporaneous complaints to their parents, to

         11  school personnel, if the Gang Division knows the

         12  identity of the gang members, if they know they have

         13  committed predicate crimes, all that would go into

         14  whether or not the child was credible or the person

         15  was credible and if you have to reach the level of

         16  probable cause in order to make the arrest.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council Member

         18  can I just jump in here one second with something

         19  that might be helpful?  You are absolutely right,

         20  and I have been having discussions with the Queens

         21  District Attorney's Office and the Bronx about the

         22  problems in proof of these matters.  But I believe

         23  it's actually a higher burden for this crime than

         24  another crime that a kid might make up, such as if

         25  he made up a threat, he threatened to kill me,
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          2  something along those lines.  Then you have one

          3  person's word against another.  Here you've got

          4  other elements that have to be proven. You have to

          5  prove that a gang exists.  You have to prove that

          6  the gang exists and commits criminal activity and

          7  you have to prove that these children were members

          8  of the gang, if there are more than two or three

          9  members of the gang.  So if a child is going to make

         10  something up against another child, it would be much

         11  easier to just make up a typical crime that he stole

         12  something from me, than to make up this crime.  But

         13  it is something that we are dealing with the

         14  District Attorney's Office right now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Is there

         16  any, do they have, do minors have a different

         17  standing in terms of coming in and filing a

         18  complaint than an adult would?  I just don't know.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,

         20  they would be, perhaps their parent would be the

         21  criminal complainant.  But they certainly suffer,

         22  they are the victims of crime, so they would be

         23  treated that way.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

         25  Thank you Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.

          3  Council Member Jennings.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Yes, a gang

          5  constitutes as a two people make a gang, three

          6  people make a gang, four make a gang, what's the

          7  amount of people that together, that to create to

          8  make a crime, is it three?  Three or more?

          9                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  Our definition as far

         10  as the New York City Police Department is concerned

         11  doesn't list the number. For this statute it says

         12  two plus one which would be three.  For this

         13  statute, but as far as the definition for the New

         14  York City Police Department there is no set number.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And this

         16  law would also apply to adults, right?

         17                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Now a gang,

         19  if a group of three or more, decides to intimidate

         20  say in a business situation where people are buying

         21  property and they force people to buy a property,

         22  intimidate them, would that be considered a gang?

         23  Three or more lawyers get together or three or more

         24  realtor people get together and they walk around and

         25  intimidate someone to do business with them.  Would
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          2  that, that's a gang too right?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, let me

          4  just jump in. The definition here that's been

          5  drafted again by Ted Baecher describes a gang as an

          6  organization having three or more persons, and I

          7  will skip a little bit, having one of it's primary

          8  activities the commission of one or more criminal

          9  acts.  So if that group that you've mentioned had a

         10  primary activity committing criminal acts, it would

         11  be.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So, three

         13  or more people, whether they are lawyers, or realtor

         14  brokers, or whatever they do, they intimidate

         15  someone to commit to compel them to do something

         16  that's considered criminal, that's a gang.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I guess it's

         18  conceivable that could actually fit in under this

         19  statute.  One moment.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well

         21  not necessarily to commit a crime but to solicit

         22  them to join their gang

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Oh to join

         24  their gang?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:
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          2  That's what this or solicits them to not leave their

          3  gang.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Okay, so if

          5  two or three lawyers, or three real estate brokers,

          6  are involved in criminal activity they try to

          7  solicit another lawyer to join their gang, would

          8  that, then would they be considered a gang?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Again, it has

         10  to be a recognized gang that has a symbol and

         11  identifiable name

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  A

         13  recognized gang, and how do you

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  The bill says

         15  identifiable name or identifying sign or symbol.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  What do you

         17  mean by a, I mean, by a recognized gang?  What's a

         18  recognized gang?  I mean, do they call, they call

         19  themselves suppose the gang was a law firm. Would a

         20  law firm be a gang?

         21                 MR. TARTAGLIA:  Maybe I can clarify

         22  it by reading the NYPD's, it kind of takes into

         23  affect what you are saying.  "A gang is a group of

         24  persons with a formal or informal structure that

         25  includes designated leaders, and members, that
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          2  engage in or is suspected of engaging in unlawful

          3  conduct."  They have to be suspected of or engaging

          4  in unlawful conduct and they have to have designated

          5  leaders and members.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So, for

          7  example, can a law firm be a gang?  If a law firm is

          8  four partners in a law firm, and they are going to

          9  be engaged in criminal activity or try to recruit

         10  other people to their firm or into their enterprise,

         11  enterprise is a better word.  Can then now we label

         12  that law firm as a gang?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Under

         14  the bill, one of the primary activities of that

         15  group which shares an identifying sign or symbol

         16  must be criminal in nature.  In addition, at least,

         17  they have to have engaged in what's defined as a

         18  pattern of criminal activity, which means that at

         19  least two of their members must have committed at

         20  least a felony or a misdemeanor involving the use of

         21  force or prostitution.  So those are the parameters

         22  within which this bill works.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  You said

         24  only use of force or prostitution, how about

         25  intimidation to sell property, or intimidation to be
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          2  involved in some type of business coerce, people to

          3  do business or not to do business.  Would that then,

          4  if those four people were part of a law firm and

          5  they were doing that type of intimidation, which

          6  would be considered I think a felony, would you now

          7  then label them as a gang?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,

          9  it depends on if it would reach the level of a

         10  felony.  But they could theoretically fit within

         11  this definition, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Sorry, say

         13  this again.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  It

         15  would have to rise to the level of at least two

         16  felonies, but yes then they could fall within the

         17  definition of this gang recruitment bill.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So a law

         19  firm with four partners or more, who are two or

         20  three of them are involved in criminal activity, and

         21  you know, and you have a suspicion of criminal

         22  activity, those are felonies.  We can then label

         23  that law firm called themselves, esquires, whatever

         24  their name is, they would then be, we could call

         25  them a gang, right?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  This question

          4  has been answered.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I just want

          6  to make that clear.  Can a law firm, for example,

          7  even a law partners who are involved in intimidation

          8  or type of criminal activity, can that be considered

          9  a gang?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,

         11  it depends on what they are doing together and how

         12  many of them have done it.  But similar to RICO

         13  (phonetic) or enterprise corruption, yes, a group of

         14  any sort, including lawyers, could get together to

         15  do criminal activity. They could commit murder.  I

         16  mean

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Right.  So

         18  outside of RICO which I will get to that too.

         19  Because RICO is when two or three people get

         20  together, conspiracy to commit a crime, RICO is

         21  involved.  But outside of charging which we normally

         22  do when you go after law firms or corporations that

         23  are involved in criminal activities, we will use

         24  RICO, but now you, we also identify them as a gang

         25  now.  So can a law firm be identified as a gang if
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          2  they are involved in criminal activity?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  If

          4  they fall within the definition of this bill, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So if are

          6  committing two or more felonies there are two

          7  instances of felonies, that you are going to charge

          8  them with, they are considered a gang.  Is that

          9  correct?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  If

         11  there are two or more people who are members of a

         12  gang of three or more people, who have committed the

         13  specified levels of crime, the predicate crimes, yes

         14  they would fall within this definition.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Thank you

         16  so much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         18  Council Member.  We have been joined by Council

         19  Member Hiram Monserrate, the Chair of our Sub-

         20  Committee on Civil Rights, who is also a sponsor of

         21  this gang recruitment bill.  Thank you for joining

         22  us.  Do you have any questions?  Okay, we will be

         23  working with both of you, cause I know it's we are

         24  still making changes to this bill.  We are going to

         25  hear some testimony from the NYCLU and Legal Aid
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          2  who, at a minimum we are going to have changes to

          3  this bill, and we're working with the District

          4  Attorney's Office so we are look forward to that.

          5  And we thank you both for your testimony today.

          6  Thank you all for coming down.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And now we'd

         10  like to hear from the Legal Aid Society, Robert

         11  Newman and Elizabeth Weiner, both from the Legal Aid

         12  Society.  And Rob Perry from the New York Civil

         13  Liberties Union.  Thanks.  Thank you, identify

         14  yourselves and begin.

         15                 MR. NEWMAN:  Good morning, Mr. Chair

         16  and Members of the Committee.  My name is Bob

         17  Newman, I'm a staff attorney at the Special

         18  Litigation Unit of the Criminal Defense Division,

         19  The Legal Aid Society of the City of New York and we

         20  would like to thank the Committee for the

         21  opportunity to testify.  Accompanying me is

         22  Elizabeth Weiner.  Miss Weiner is a philanthropic

         23  social worker with our Juvenile Rights Division and

         24  also has experience as a clinical social worker,

         25  working with teenagers.  As you may know the Legal
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          2  Aid Society is the country's largest and oldest

          3  provider of legal services to poor people.  The

          4  Juvenile Rights Division provides comprehensive

          5  representation as law guardians to children who

          6  appear before the Family Courts in delinquency,

          7  child protective, and other proceedings relating to

          8  children's rights and welfare. The Criminal Defense

          9  Division also has juvenile offender teams of

         10  lawyers, investigators, and social workers who

         11  devote themselves specifically to the representation

         12  of juvenile offenders in felony matters.  Based on

         13  the extensive experiences of attorneys in both of

         14  our divisions, we believe that this legislation

         15  would actually do more harm than good for our City's

         16  young people.  It's been well documented that many

         17  young people join gangs and talk to others about

         18  joining gangs for reasons other than criminal

         19  activity.  For example, they often organize

         20  themselves into gangs for reasons of friendship,

         21  pleasure, or just to make mischief.  They seek

         22  identity, respect, or a sense of belonging and

         23  support.  And, as I think someone else said, gang

         24  membership is sometimes used by children as a means

         25  of self- preservation when children have to make
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          2  peace with local gangs in order to go to school or

          3  walk around their neighborhood.  Ironically,

          4  researchers also documented that the higher ranking

          5  members of gangs tend often to commit crimes, but

          6  not to wear gang clothing or colors; whereas often

          7  the younger members, the "wannabees", against whom

          8  enforcement of this bill might be directed would

          9  flash gang colors and signs but not engage in as

         10  much criminal activity.

         11                 We fear that enforcement of an

         12  ordinance like this would inevitably be directed

         13  against young people in impoverished neighborhoods

         14  where teenage life tends more to take place on the

         15  street rather than in backyards, family rooms, or

         16  sports clubs. These young people already face

         17  numerous problems ranging from poor education, to

         18  unemployment.  And while the sponsors of this Intro,

         19  and I know many of you are sponsors of it, I

         20  understand your seeking to strengthen the hand of

         21  young people who are struggling to resist the

         22  enticement of gangs, we think the best way to

         23  achieve this is to invest the necessary resources to

         24  strengthen families, improve schools, and enhance

         25  opportunities in poor neighborhoods. As Alexis
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          2  Herman, the former Secretary of Labor, has testified

          3  to the US Senate, "The best crime prevention

          4  strategy is a jobs promotion strategy."

          5                 We think that if this legislation is

          6  aggressively enacted and enforced, it will be simply

          7  a new means to put more children into juvenile

          8  detention centers where gang activity is

          9  particularly prevalent.  This law enforcement

         10  approach to the complex issues of gang membership

         11  simply does not address the conditions and problems

         12  that make these group affiliations attractive to

         13  young people.  I've been advised by members of our

         14  Juvenile Rights Division, like Elizabeth, who deal

         15  with young people in gangs, that currently not one

         16  program exists in the City that works exclusively

         17  with children on gang issues.  Lawyers have no where

         18  to turn when a Family Court judge directs that a

         19  child enroll in a program designed to discourage

         20  gang membership.  We think the City should address

         21  the negative effects of gang membership through the

         22  provision of community- based programs and after

         23  school activities.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We agree.  I

         25  just want to try to stick to this bill though.
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          2  There are other ways we can combat gang activity and

          3  we've taken a lead in that, but if we can just stick

          4  to this bill and why it will or will not work.

          5                 MR. NEWMAN:  We do feel in addressing

          6  one of the questions that you asked the Police

          7  Department, that the existing crime of coercion

          8  under the State Penal Law may be used to target and

          9  prosecute the kind of threatening and intimidating

         10  conduct that you are seeking to address in this

         11  bill.  I mean, our memorandum extensively quotes the

         12  Penal Law provisions on coercion which make it a

         13  felony if anybody threatens force or violence to get

         14  someone to do something he has a right to do, right

         15  not to do, such as joining a gang and it's also a

         16  felony if you threaten violence to try to make

         17  somebody not do what they have a right to do.  Such

         18  as leaving a gang.  The coercion statute is not

         19  limited to violent or forcible threats.  If someone

         20  for example is sharing an apartment with older

         21  people who are gang members and they say "You better

         22  join our gang or we are going to evict you, we're

         23  going to throw you on the street", that would be the

         24  crime of coercion as a misdemeanor carrying at least

         25  the same penalty as the penalty under the proposed
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          2  Intro.  If the threat succeeded in coercing the

          3  person it would be an "A" misdemeanor, it would

          4  carry a stronger penalty than the Intro.  Even if

          5  the threat did not succeed, which the Police

          6  Department says is something that they want to

          7  address, it would be attempted coercion and that

          8  would carry at least as strong a penalty as this

          9  Intro provides.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I just need to

         11  jump in because there are a few points that you've

         12  hit and before other people go on to.  Let me stick

         13  with that one first.  You are right, coercion would

         14  sometimes, sometimes, encompass this as long as

         15  there is a threat that would compel someone.  Right

         16  now you can have a Crypt Recruitment Table at a

         17  school, it would be legal.  That's the type of thing

         18  that this bill is going to address that coercion

         19  doesn't. Right now, if they ask, if they can get,

         20  offer to give someone money, or drug, or something

         21  like that, that would not be coercion to enter a

         22  gang.  So, yes I understand that coercion does

         23  exist. This is going to give more tools to the

         24  Police Department.  So I guess we just disagree on

         25  that.  You mention before whether it be self-
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          2  preservation or making mischief, these are reasons

          3  that people join gangs.  These are reasons where I

          4  am putting this bill in to stop that.  And you also

          5  said that it's going to be enforced in poor areas.

          6  Would you agree that poor areas are the areas that

          7  are suffering most greatly right now under with

          8  gangs in their in those areas?

          9                 MR. NEWMAN:  Ah, yes, I would agree

         10  with that, but I also feel that the children who are

         11  most at risk of joining gangs need greater

         12  recreational and educational and job opportunities,

         13  more than law enforcement.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We absolutely

         15  agree.  I don't know if you have more to say, but I

         16  just wanted to jump in on those points cause I would

         17  forget them, I'm getting old.  So continue.

         18                 MR. NEWMAN:  As you do mention how

         19  it's true this bill would cover the Crypts putting

         20  out a table at a street fair or in a school, and I

         21  don't think though that the Crypts or the Bloods are

         22  likely to do that, and that makes enforcement of

         23  this bill very difficult.  In fact, I think it would

         24  rarely be possible to prove a violation of the law

         25  in a situation where the offender had not already
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          2  committed some other crime, subjecting him to equal

          3  or greater punishment.  Unless the police were going

          4  to allocate substantial resources to using

          5  undercover officers and informants. I kind of think

          6  that that allocation of resources would be unwise in

          7  view of the other tasks before the police and

          8  pressuring young persons to become informants would

          9  create problems of it's own. The only conduct that

         10  really is covered by this bill that is not already

         11  covered under existing laws is conduct that is

         12  verbal, non violent and is not directed toward any

         13  criminal activity, because if it's soliciting

         14  somebody to commit a crime that's covered under

         15  existing law too.  We feel that if you actually try

         16  to enforce the law against non- threatening, non-

         17  criminal conduct you do run the risk of infringing

         18  on the rights of free speech and free association.

         19  Our memo sets out some situations where this bill

         20  could be enforced, perhaps not in ways the sponsors

         21  intend but would be allowed under the text of the

         22  law and would be constitutionally suspect.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We do have the

         24  memo and we absolutely will be looking at it and

         25  using it and honing our bill. Are you still, I don't
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          2  want to call on the person next to you until you are

          3  finished.

          4                 MR. NEWMAN:  We would be happy to

          5  answer any further questions that the Committee has.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Is anyone else

          7  testifying, or is it just yourself?

          8                 MR. NEWMAN:  I know Mr. Perry would

          9  like to make some remarks.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  Whoever

         11  has testimony can begin.

         12                 MR. PERRY:  Good morning.  My name is

         13  Robert Perry, I'm legislative counsel with the New

         14  York Civil Liberties Union. I want to thank the

         15  Committee and the Chairman for inviting us to

         16  comment on Intro 364- A which creates the crime of

         17  gang recruitment. The NYCLU agrees with two of the

         18  central legislative findings identified in Section 1

         19  of the bill, that persons have a right to be secure

         20  and protected from fear and harm caused by violent

         21  groups and individuals.  And secondly, that the

         22  government must afford, must secure that right and

         23  in doing so respect the constitutional protections

         24  that are afford of speech, expression, and

         25  association. However, we would like to raise some
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          2  concerns regarding definitions of criminal street

          3  gangs as defined, as set out in the bill.  We also

          4  would like to raise the question as to whether

          5  alternative interventions may not be more affective

          6  or equally as affective certainly in addressing some

          7  of the underlying factors that lead to unlawful gang

          8  activities.  So I will try to address just briefly

          9  three areas relating to those concerns.  The first,

         10  I think, goes to the earlier discussion that seemed

         11  to implicate over breath, issues of over

         12  interpretation, or perhaps misdirected application

         13  of the proposed law.  We are concerned for that very

         14  reason the proposed bill may lead to criminal

         15  prosecution based upon guilt by association,

         16  violating the First Amendment and Fifth Amendment

         17  rights.  Let me just set out briefly the standard

         18  and then explain why we think the bill may run

         19  afoul.  Individual culpability of course is a better

         20  off principle of the criminal justice system. The

         21  Supreme Court has developed a bright line rule that

         22  prohibits the government from imposing sanctions

         23  upon an individual who associates with a group that

         24  engages in legal as well as illegal activities

         25  unless the government provides, proves that the
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          2  individual intended to further the group's illegal

          3  activities. Professor David Cole, at Georgetown, has

          4  written about this issue. And he makes it simple, he

          5  uses a simple example to illustrate the point.  "To

          6  punish "A" for the acts of "B" without showing any

          7  connection between "A" and the illegal acts of "B"

          8  other than some general association between "A" and

          9   "B" is unfair.  It's fundamentally unfair."  And we

         10  are concerned that the proposed legislation may run

         11  afoul of this rule.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Did you say

         13  punish "A" for joining "B" or?

         14                 MR. PERRY:  Let me just run it by you

         15  again.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  It wouldn't be,

         17  wouldn't it be punishing the "B" for getting

         18  somebody else to join with them?  I'm just not sure,

         19  I'm not sure I understood that.

         20                 MR. PERRY:  The problem arises as we

         21  see it when you punish "A" for the acts of "B"

         22  without showing any connection between "A" and the

         23  illegal acts of "B" other than some general

         24  association.  So I think that the Supreme Court rule

         25  will make it more clear.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  While you are

          3  on this point, I want to ask you the same question.

          4  I understand that you have all have problems with

          5  this, if there is a way to make this narrow enough

          6  to maybe not even get you to support it, but to feel

          7  it's better than it is now, obviously we would

          8  appreciate hearing that. Because that is a concern

          9  of our's too.

         10                 MR. PERRY:  I don't know of a facial

         11  challenge on this specific issue, but the case law

         12  certainly talks about specific intent and knowledge.

         13    But I think if I go to this proposed bill I think

         14  it will become more clear.  Our concerns. The bill

         15  defines a criminal street gang as any organization

         16  or association and also I'll truncate the definition

         17  here having as one of it's primary activities the

         18  commission of one or more criminal acts, or illegal

         19  acts.  And then it goes on.  So by definition then

         20  the activity of a criminal street gang may involve

         21  both lawful and unlawful activity.  And the proposed

         22  law would not require that a person charged with

         23  recruitment, gang recruitment, intend to engage in

         24  any criminal activity other than the recruitment

         25  itself.  It doesn't require that the person has
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          2  knowledge of criminal activity, perpetrated by other

          3  gang members. So, for example, under the ordinance a

          4  young person can be convicted of gang recruitment

          5  even if she's totally aware that friends defined in

          6  the ordinance as fellow members of the gang are

          7  engaging in criminal conduct.  And that the Supreme

          8  Court has said is problematic.  Where does the lack

          9  of knowledge or intent provisions as it just

         10  suggested, such a scheme imposes in effect a

         11  conclusive presumption that the members share the

         12  unlawful aims of the organization.  That's what the

         13  Supreme Court is objected to. So this may sound sort

         14  of legalistic, but I think that at the street level

         15  the concerns I raise are troubling and I think they

         16  are readily apparent.  And I think this is what was

         17  being alluded to by Mr. Newman.  Because of this

         18  problem with knowledge or intent, we are concerned

         19  that the bill would create a risk that lawful or

         20  even socially productive activities will be

         21  criminalized. The bill's definition of criminal

         22  street gang including gang names, signs, and symbols

         23  suggests that identification is a fairly straight

         24  forward matter.  But the reality is at odds with

         25  this characterization.  Gangs are a complex
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          2  organizations, no less so in their structures of

          3  organization and mission than in their physical

          4  appearance of members and dress of members.  But let

          5  me be clear that what I'm not suggesting here is

          6  that certain gangs may be involved in serious

          7  crimes.  I'm not contesting that proposition. But as

          8  Professor David Cole has said, who I alluded to

          9  earlier, it's undoubtedly the rare gang that engages

         10  exclusively in illegal behavior.  Gangs he continues

         11  also provide social activities and networks of

         12  support to their members and their communities.  And

         13  there's a lot of research to support this

         14  proposition.  Professor Luis Bario (phonetic), at

         15  John Jay, has written that the Latin kings and

         16  queens embrace a mix of principles taken from a

         17  twelve step program.  This program of personal

         18  ethics, social support, political doctrine,

         19  community engagement, spiritual rituals offers

         20  members the possibility of identity built on the

         21  strengths of indigenous cultures.  His colleague,

         22  Richard Curtis, also at John Jay, has observed that

         23  gangs like the Yanetas (phonetic) function as an

         24  alternative family that prescribes rules and

         25  justifications for behavior thereby bringing order
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          2  and structure into potentially unmanageable social

          3  and emotional situations.  For those who've had

          4  histories of substance abuse, Mr. Curtis has

          5  written, or who are infected with HIV, the gangs

          6  function as a vital support network. So, what I'm

          7  suggesting is, I think it would be constructive for

          8  the Committee to review the really extensive

          9  criminological and sociological information that

         10  finds street gang cultures a complex phenomenon

         11  encompassing a broad range of beliefs and

         12  activities. One final point and then I'll conclude

         13  and that is the concern of allocation of police

         14  resources to investigate suspected gang members may

         15  divert attention from other interventions that have

         16  really proven quite effective.  And I know you want

         17  to stick to the bill but if I could just make one

         18  point I think it's relevant to your concern here.

         19  The Gang Resistance Education and Training Program,

         20  this is a program that NYPD actually was involved

         21  in, has pretty extraordinary results that have been

         22  empirically demonstrated.  This great program has

         23  been incorporated into school curriculum in 47

         24  states.  It's a nine-week program that provides

         25  students with tools to resist the lure of criminal
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          2  gang activity, teaching students conflict

          3  resolution, cultural sensitivity, and the negative

          4  aspects of gang life.  A recent study just released

          5  indicates that looking at 11 sites with 6,000 eighth

          6  grade students show that the program, the great

          7  program, had resulted in more pro social attitudes

          8  and lower rates of some types of delinquent behavior

          9  than in students in the comparison group.  The

         10  students who had gone through the great program were

         11  found to have lower levels of all measures of gang

         12  affiliation and self- purported delinquency and

         13  these differences were often statistically

         14  significant.  Program participants had significantly

         15  lower rates of drug use and minor delinquent

         16  offenses.  Now as I said, the NYPD has participated

         17  in that program.  My understanding is that they are

         18  not now currently involved with the program.

         19  However, I think the findings I sighted suggest that

         20  it would be worthwhile for the Council to consider

         21  addressing that type of alternative intervention.

         22  In concluding I would just submit that we are

         23  concerned about some of the definitional standards

         24  and would strongly urge that you get Professor Bario

         25  (phonetic) and other experts in gang, in studying
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          2  gang activity, to inform this discussion.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  You

          4  make some very good points and we are well aware of

          5  some of those problems and I believe that is

          6  probably why this is the first legislation of it's

          7  type in the entire country.  And we are trying to

          8  work with your groups and District Attorneys offices

          9  and things like that to come up with a bill that

         10  will survive constitutional scrutiny and will be

         11  enforced properly.  Our concern right now I think is

         12  more, I think you're both right, that there some

         13  enforcement problems here, proof problems.  And I

         14  think at this point it is not going to be used as a

         15  tool by the police to against anyone in particular.

         16  I think it's more of a deterrent for schools to use

         17  and for police who work with schools to use to tell

         18  children not to even engage in this type of activity

         19  because the proof problems may not even be worth the

         20  prosecution at this point.  Trying to prove all the

         21  elements that we've put in here, to try to add, give

         22  additional protections.  But before I get to my

         23  questions, Council Member Reed.  Mr. Perry, if you

         24  could please sit next to, I'm sorry, Mr. Newman, Mr.

         25  Perry, so that you could each answer it.  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair, and I think your last comment may really be

          4  have hit on my concern.  I was listening to both of

          5  your testimony and frankly I got as confused as I

          6  think as I think as the Chair did with "A" to "B"

          7  and see I didn't know how far the alphabet we were

          8  going.  But it does seem to me that you know that I

          9  have some concerns that we could just could randomly

         10  accuse people of things.  But I think the Chair is

         11  correct.  If young people are feeling intimidated,

         12  and often times we hear we have no recourse, we

         13  don't know what to do.  The schools say they don't

         14  know what to do, the parents don't know, but every

         15  day you throw that kid and I think it's also young

         16  girls involved with this too because we keep talking

         17  about boys, but some of the real intimidation

         18  happens with the young girls.  This I think would be

         19  helpful and I think we should have more programs

         20  funded, all of those things you said, but that

         21  hasn't got anything to do with this.  I think what

         22  the Chair has said about the teachers, the principal

         23  in the school being able to say to young people that

         24  behavior is criminal and if this is happening to

         25  you, we will be able, we have a way to help you with
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          2  this.  It is critically important so I would agree

          3  with the Chair.  I would like to see if you have

          4  some way to more narrowly define this that you think

          5  would be helpful for clarification.  But I don't

          6  quite understand how one begets the next and I think

          7  we are talking about the other side of it, as

          8  opposed to trying to protect the young people who

          9  are trying to stay out of that kind of environment.

         10  And I'm not even sure that I subscribe to the

         11  variances that I see inherited in your conversation

         12  here based on race.  I'm not sure that that has

         13  significant bearing in this.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you Mr.

         15  Reed.  I think you've said it better than I could.

         16  Mr. Newman, did you want to respond?

         17                 MR. NEWMAN:  We certainly agree that

         18  there should be no gang recruitment in schools and

         19  we would have no problem at all with the school

         20  rules prohibiting gang recruitment either in the

         21  school or on school grounds.  But we are looking at

         22  this as a criminal statute and I would note that as

         23  Mr. Perry did that not only is there no requirement

         24  in the bill that the person prosecuted intend in any

         25  way to advance the gang's criminal activity.
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          2  There's a, but contrary to what the police

          3  department said, there is no requirement in the bill

          4  that the person be a gang member either in order to

          5  be liable under this bill.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council Member

          7  Monserrate.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

          9  you, gentlemen, for your testimony.  My question is

         10  if we would add to this bill that the recruitment,

         11  what would make you more comfortable about this

         12  bill.  I think I'm hearing that if this bill clearly

         13  identify the recruitment and the recruiter, let's

         14  say the recruiter to gangs being guilty of not only

         15  recruiting but recruiting and these folks knowingly

         16  getting, knowingly being recruited into a gang that

         17  is involved in criminal activities, is that in one

         18  way what the argument that you are putting forward?

         19                 MR. PERRY:  Perhaps if I could

         20  clarify my "A", "B", raised here by Mr. Reed.  The

         21  concern here is fairly straight forward.  A

         22  purported or refuted gang may be involved in public

         23  education, it may be involved in you know cultural

         24  study, cultural identification, in addition to

         25  perhaps an unlawful activity.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Do you actually

          3  know of any group that does that?  I mean, I hate to

          4  legislate for the one in a million exception as

          5  opposed to the norm.  If a group that has a

          6  community service and gang criminal activity.

          7                 MR. PERRY:  The Luis Bario (phonetic)

          8  cites in my testimony provides that information,

          9  it's quite extensive.  I mean these groups do have

         10  broad missions that do involve community building,

         11  religious activities, spiritual development, and

         12  education.  As I said, I will leave it at that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  None of those

         14  groups as far as I know take make any effort to

         15  cover up the fact that they also are a criminal

         16  enterprise.  As far as I know, there is no group out

         17  there that someone would join and not know that they

         18  are a criminal group.

         19                 MR. PERRY:  I would suggest that may

         20  not be the case.  And that's the problem I'm trying

         21  to address.  Where some of these organizations, for

         22  example, in the mid 90's, the Latin Kings went

         23  through a significant transformation in culture.

         24  This is in part a result of very aggressive law

         25  enforcement which essentially disbanded the gang.
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          2  As a result of that the Latin Kings and Queens took

          3  on a very affirmative community-based empowerment

          4  program, they didn't involve just the things I

          5  talked about.  Now there may well be members of that

          6  group that are still involved in some unlawful

          7  activity.  So perhaps a person is recruiting on

          8  behalf of the public education mission, but there

          9  may be unbeknownst to this persons ongoing criminal

         10  activity by some member in that particular

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, let me

         12  get back to Council Member Monserrate's point which

         13  is good.  What change would you suggest to fix that

         14  problem?

         15                 MR. PERRY:  It goes to my earlier

         16  point which without some knowledge or intent that

         17  hypothetical I was just describing is likely to play

         18  out.  So someone who is entirely innocent of any

         19  type of criminal conduct is simply recruiting a

         20  person for an educational or empowerment program can

         21  suddenly now become implicated as a gang recruiter

         22  for unlawful activity. That's the concern.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So I can

         24  clearer, the recruiter would have to have knowledge

         25  and intent that he's recruiting someone into the
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          2  gang that is actually going to be

          3                 MR. PERRY:  That's the language the

          4  Supreme Court has used in addressing the problems,

          5  when that language is missing, is absent.  As I said

          6  we're actually more interested in some of the other

          7  interventions that we think would actually be more

          8  productive and effective in addressing the issue.  I

          9  would hope that any bill would incorporate that at

         10  the very least.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So you

         12  are basically saying that the addition knowledge and

         13  intent would make this more powerful on legal

         14  grounds.

         15                 MR. PERRY:  It certainly addresses

         16  the critical flaws that have been struck down by the

         17  Supreme Court in these types of cases.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  It's not an

         19  unreasonable suggestion at all.  It's something we

         20  are going to take a look at. It would make proof of

         21  this crime even harder as is part of the problem

         22  here to try to prove the knowledge of intent, but

         23  many times when the suggestion is made to join the

         24  gang those words are used, we do this, we do that.

         25  So it might be easy enough to put that into the law
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          2  and still be able to prosecute underneath it. But

          3  it's a good point the Council Member has and it's

          4  something we will look at.  Do you also, do you have

          5  any suggestions on how we can make this narrower and

          6  less objectionable to you?  I don't you're ever

          7  going to support it but less objectionable.

          8                 MR. NEWMAN:  Well, I agree with Mr.

          9  Perry that it would be somewhat less objectionable

         10  if there was an intent requirement that the person

         11  recruiting intend that the person recruited actively

         12  participates in a pattern of criminal activity. But

         13  I would like to re- emphasize that to the extent we

         14  are dealing with non- violent, non- threatening

         15  recruitment.  We feel that the best antidote to bad

         16  speech is more speech.  We should have more

         17  community police officers and youth officers go into

         18  the schools and parks and try to talk kids out of

         19  gangs and redirect their lives in a more positive

         20  way.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, my

         22  Council will be reaching out to both of your

         23  organizations and for assistance in redrafting this.

         24    We appreciate your coming down today and giving us

         25  your testimony.
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          2                 MR. PERRY:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I

          3  just want to note that I am amending my statement as

          4  just presented and I will be providing that with

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We don't have

          6  that yet.

          7                 MR. PERRY:  That's right.  I'm

          8  amending it, I will be providing you the final copy

          9  later today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  Now can

         11  you repeat everything because I think Council Member

         12  Gentile just joined us. But thank you both for

         13  coming down.

         14                 MR. PERRY:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. NEWMAN:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now that the

         17  Council Member is here we can close the hearing, so

         18  thank you all for coming today.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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